EXHIBIT "B"

BY-LAWS

OF

BOROUGHS AT WYNDHAM SOUTH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

BY-LAWS

OF

BOROUGHS AT WYNDHAM SOUTH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		D DEFINITIONS	, 1
Section 1.			
Section 2.	Definit	ions	l
	DUMINI		1
ARTICLE II - AS	SOCIA	TION: MEETING, QUORUM, VOTING, PROXIES	1
Section 1.	Place o	f Meetings	1
Section 2.	Annual	Meetings	1
Section 3.	Special	Meetings	1
Section 4.	Notice	of Meetings	1
Section 5.	Waiver	of Notice	2
Section 6.	Adjour	nment of Meetings	2
Section 7.	Voting		2
Section 8.	Proxies		2
Section 9.	Quorun	1	2
Section 10.	Conduc	et of Meetings	2
Section 11.	Record	Date	2
Section 12.	Action	by Written Ballot	2
Section 13.	Action	by Written Consent	3
ADDICLE IXI DA	0 t DD 4		
		OF DIRECTORS; NUMBER, POWERS, MEETINGS	
A. Composit	ion and S	Selection	3
Sec	tion 1.	Governing Body; Composition	3
Sec	tion 2.	Directors During Declarant Control	3
Section 3.		Election and Term of Office	4
Section 4.		Nominations of Directors	4
Section 5.		Vacancies	4
Section 6.		Removal of Directors	4
B. Meetings			
D. Mccings	*********		
	tion 7.		4
Sec		Organizational Meeting	4 4
Sec Sec	tion 7.	Organizational MeetingRegular Meeting	4 4 4
Sec Sec Sec Sec	tion 7. tion 8.	Organizational Meeting	4 4 4 4

		ection 12,	Compensation	4
		ection 13.	relephone and Similar Meetings	4
		ection 14.	Executive Session	4
	Section 15		Action without a Formal Meeting	4
	Section 16.		Adjournments	4
	a 5			
	C. Powers	and Duties	D	5
	Section 17.		Powers	4
	Se	ection 18.	Management Agent	6
ART	ICLE IV - C	PFICE	RS	
	Section 1.	066		6
	Section 1.	Unicers	The Community of the Co	6
	Section 2.	Election	i, Term of Office, and Vacancies	4
		Kemova	4	1
	Section 4.	Powers	and Duties	4
	Section 5.	Resigna	tion	7
ART	ICLE V - CO		rees	
	Section 1.	General		/
	Section 1.	Term of	A projet most	7
	Section 3.	Vacanci	Appointment	7
	Section 4.	Ouorum	es	7
	Section 5.	Rules		7
	Beetion 3.	Kuies ,		7
ART	ICLE VI - M	IISCELL	ANSOUS7	_
		т 1 .	~	7
	Section 1.	Indemni	fication	7
	Section 2.	Deposits		7
	Section 3.	Commens	5	7
	Section 4.	Dooks at	id Records	,
	Section 5.	Nonces.	9	2
	Section 6.	Amendin	lento)
	Section 7.	rax-exe	mpt Statuso	,
	Section 8.	Construc	uon	2
	Section 9.	Headings	0	,

BY-LAWS

OF

BOROUGHS AT WYNDHAM SOUTH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME AND DEFINITIONS

Section 1. Name. The name of the Association shall be Boroughs at Wyndham South Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinafter the "Association").

<u>Section 2</u>. <u>Definitions</u>. The words used in these By-Laws shall have the same meaning as set forth in said Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and Easements for Wyndham Gates Subdivision, Pod 3 A/K/A/ The Boroughs at Wyndham South (hereinafter the "Declaration").

ARTICLE II

ASSOCIATION: MEETINGS, QUORUM, VOTING, PROXIES

Section 1. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Members as may be designated by the Board of Directors in Lee County, Alabama or as convenient thereto as is possible and practical.

Section 2. Annual Meetings. Annual meetings shall be set by the Board of Directors from time to time at any time, date and place agreed upon by the Board of Directors. If the day for the annual meeting is inadvertently set for a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following such legal holiday (excluding Saturday and Sunday).

Section 3. Special Meetings. The President may call special meetings. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association if so directed by resolution of a majority of the Board of Directors or, after Buildout, by a petition signed by at least twenty-five (25%) percent of the total votes of the Association. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each annual and special meeting of the Members shall be given by or at the direction of the Secretary or any person or persons authorized to call a meeting by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least ten (10) days, but not more than thirty (30) days, before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of the notice. The notice shall state the time, date and place where such meeting is to be held and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the special meeting.

Section 5. Waiver of Notice. Waiver of notice of meeting of the Members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Members, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by a member, whether in person or by proxy, shall be deemed waiver by such member of notice of the time, date, and place thereof, unless such member specifically objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting, at the beginning of the meeting. Attendance at a meeting shall also be deemed waiver of the objection to consideration of a particular matter at the meeting that is not within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice, unless the member objects to considering the matter when it is presented.

Section 6. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meetings of the Association cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Members who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called. If the new date, time, and place is announced at the original meeting before adjournment, then notice need not be given of the new date, time or place. If a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted at the adjourned meeting.

Section 7. Voting. The voting rights of the Members shall be as set forth in the Declaration and Articles of Incorporation, which voting rights are specifically incorporated herein. Unless otherwise required by the Declaration, the affirmative vote of a Majority of the votes cast at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Membership.

Section 8. Proxies. At all meetings of Members, each member may vote in Person or by proxy, as further may be limited by the terms of the Declaration. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of each meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable. Each proxy shall automatically cease upon a member's criteria for Membership ceasing to exist or upon receipt of notice by the Secretary of the death or judicially declared incompetence of a member, or of written revocation. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 9. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws or in the Declaration, the presence in person or by proxy of at least twenty percent (20%) of the total votes existing in the Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association. In the event a quorum is not present, another meeting may be called subject to the same notice requirement, and the required quorum at the subsequent meeting shall be one-half (1/2) of the quorum required at the first meeting. Any provision in the Declaration concerning quorum is specifically incorporated herein.

Section 10. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat.

Section 11. Record Date. The Association may establish such record dates for Membership as may be authorized by the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law or applicable Alabama law.

Section 12. Action by Written Ballot. Any action to be taken at any annual, regular or special

meeting of Members may be taken without a meeting if approved by written ballot as provided herein. The Association shall deliver a written ballot to each member entitled to vote on the matter. The written ballot shall set forth each proposed action and provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action. Approval by written ballot of any action shall be valid when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting held to authorize such action and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the matter at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the sanle as the number of votes cast by ballot. All solicitations for votes by written ballot shall indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement; state the percentage of approvals necessary to approve each matter other than election of directors; and specify the time by which a ballot must be received by the Association in order to be counted. A timely written ballot received by the Association may not be revoked without the consent of the Board of Directors. The results of each action by written ballot shall be certified by the Secretary and shall be included in the minutes of meetings of Members filed in the permanent records of the Association.

Section 13. Action by Written Consent. Any action to be taken at any annual, regular or special meeting of the Members may be taken without a meeting if one (1) or more consents, in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed and dated by Members (including the Declarant, if the consent of the Declarant is required) holding the voting power required to pass such action at a meeting held on the record date for such action. The record date for such action shall be the date that the first Member signs and consent. Such action shall be approved when the Secretary receives a sufficient number of such consents. Such action shall be approved when the Secretary receives a sufficient number of such consents. If less than unanimous consent is obtained, the approval shall be effective ten (10) days after the Secretary gives notice of the approval to all Members who did not sign a consent. Each consent shall be included in the minutes of meetings of Members filed in the permanent records of the Association. No Consent shall be valid unless: (1) the consenting Member has been furnished the same material that, pursuant to the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law, would have been required to be sent to members in a notice of a meeting at which the proposed action would have been submitted to the Members for action; or (2) the written consent contains an express waiver of the right to receive the material otherwise required to be furnished.

ARTICLE III

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: NUMBER, POWERS, MEETINGS

A. <u>Composition and Selection.</u>

Section 1. Governing Body Composition. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors. Except as provided in Section 2 of this Article, the directors shall be Members or spouses of Members; provided, however, that no person and his or her spouse may serve on the Board at the same time. Directors do not have to reside in the Community.

Section 2. Directors During Declarant Control. The initial directors shall be selected by the Declarant, acting in its sole discretion, and shall serve at the pleasure of the Declarant so long as the Class "B" Membership exists as set forth in the Declaration. The Directors selected by the

Declarant need not be Members of the Association nor residents in the Community. The number of directors serving on the Declarant appointed Board shall be determined by the Declarant.

Section 3. Election and Term of Office. Not later than ninety (90) days after the Class "B" Membership terminates, as provided in the Declaration, the Association shall call a special meeting of the Members at which the Owners shall elect three (3) directors. The term of two (2) directors shall be fixed at two (2) years and the term of one (1) director shall be fixed at one (1) year. After the expiration of the initial term of office of each director, all directors shall be elected to serve for terms of two (2) years. Members of the Board of Directors shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected by the Association.

<u>Section 4.</u> <u>Nominations of Directors</u>. Nominations for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by any Member prior to and at the meeting at which directors shall be elected. A nominating committee may be appointed by the Board of Directors which shall seek out nominations of candidates for election to the Board of Directors.

Section 5. <u>Vacancies</u>. After the termination of the Class "B" Membership, any vacancy in the Board of Directors arising from the resignation of a director may be filled for the unexpired term by a majority of the remaining directors then in office.

Section 6. Removal of Directors. Upon the termination of the Class "B" Membership, at any regular or special meeting of the Association duly called, any one or more of the Members of the Board of Directors may be removed, with or without cause, by a majority of the Members authorized to vote for directors and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. A director whose removal has been proposed shall be given at least ten (10) days' notice of the calling of the meeting and the purpose thereof and shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting.

B. Meetings.

Section 7. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the Members of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Membership shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Board.

Section 8. Regular Meeting. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the directors, but at least two (2) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of the time and place of each regular meeting shall be given by the secretary either personally or by telephone or by mail not less than seven (7) days or no more than thirty (30) days before such regular meeting.

Section 9. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President on his own motion or by any two (2) directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. Notice of any special meeting shall be given by the secretary personally or by telephone or by mail at least twenty-four (24) hours before such meeting.

Section 10. Waiver of Notice. The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly

held after regular call and notice, if (a) a quorum is present, and (b) either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice. The waiver of notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. A director's attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to him of the meeting unless the director at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon his arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

Section 11. Quorum; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the presence of a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors in attendance at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Directors. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, so long as any action taken is approved by at least a majority of all of the directors.

Section 12. Compensation. No director shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such unless approved by a majority vote of the total vote of the Association at a regular or special meeting of the Association.

Section 13. Telephone and Similar Meetings. Directors may participate in and hold a meeting by means of telephone or similar communication whereby all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in such a meeting shall constitute the presence in person at the meeting except where a director participates in the meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the grounds that a meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section14. Executive Session. By the majority vote of the directors at a meeting at which a quorum is present, the Board may adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, and orders of business of a sensitive nature.

Section 15. Action Without a Formal Meeting. Any action to be taken at a meeting of the Board or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if such action is evidenced by written consents, setting forth the action so taken, signed by at least a majority of the directors; provided that such action is taken in accordance with the Alabama Non-Profit Corporation Law.

Section 16. Adjournments. A meeting of the Board of Directors, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned by a majority of the directors present, to reconvene at a specific time and place. It shall not be necessary to give notice of the reconvened meeting or of the business to be transacted, other than by announcement at the meeting which was adjourned. At any such reconvened meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which could have been transacted at the meeting which was adjourned.

C. <u>Powers and Duties.</u>

Section 17. Powers. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the affairs of the Association and shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs and, as provided by law, may do all acts and things as are not by the

Declaration, Articles, or these By-Laws directed to be done and exercised exclusively by the Members.

Section 18. Management Agent.

- (a) The Board of Directors may employ for the Association a professional management agent or agents, at a compensation established by the Board of Directors, to perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize. The Board of Directors may delegate to the managing agent or manager, subject to the Board's supervision, all of the powers granted to the Board of Directors by these. By-Laws. The Declarant, or an affiliate of the Declarant, may be employed as managing agent or manager.
- (b) No management contract may have a term in excess of one (1) year. The Board shall use reasonable efforts to enter into a management contract that permits termination by either party, without cause and without termination fee, on ninety (90) days' or less written notice.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

- Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers' including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person. The President, Secretary, Vice President and Treasurer shall be elected from among the Members of the Board of Directors.
- Section 2. Election, Term of Office, and Vacancies. The Officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Members. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- <u>Section 3</u>. <u>Removal</u>. Any officer may be removed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, a quorum being present, whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby.
- Section 4. Powers and Duties. The officers of the Association shall each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties as may from time to time be specifically conferred or imposed by the Board of Directors. The President shall be chief executive officer of the Association. The Treasurer shall have primary responsibility for the preparation of the budget, as provided for in the Declaration, and may delegate all or part of the preparation and notification duties to a finance committee, management agent, or both.

Section 5. Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE V

COMMITTEES

- Section 1. General. Committees to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present are hereby authorized. Such committees shall perform such duties and have such powers as may be provided in the resolution. Each committee shall be composed and shall operate in accordance with the terms of the resolution of the Board of Directors designating the committee or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.
- Section 2. Term of Appointment. Each member of a committee shall continue to serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until his successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner terminated or unless the member shall be removed from such committee or shall resign. Each member of a committee may be removed with or without cause by the Board of Directors at any time.
- Section 3. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as the original appointments.
- <u>Section 4</u>. <u>Quorum</u>. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, the presence of a majority of the committee members shall constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the members of a committee shall be the act of the committee.
- Section 5. Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own operation so long as such rules are approved by the Board of Directors and are not inconsistent with the Declaration, the By-Laws or the rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

- Section 1. <u>Indemnification</u>. Indemnification of officers, directors, agents, employees and committee Members of the Association shall be as set forth in Declaration.
- <u>Section2</u>. <u>Deposits</u>. All funds of the Association shall be deposited from time to time in bank accounts or other depositaries of the Association as the Board of Directors may select.
- <u>Section3</u>. <u>Conflicts</u>. If there are conflicts or inconsistencies between the provisions of Alabama law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and these By-Laws, the provisions of Alabama law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws (in that order) shall prevail.

Section 4. Books and Records. The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of the Association and its accounts and shall keep minutes of all proceedings of the Board of Directors and committees having any authority of the Board of Directors. The books and records of the Association shall be available for inspection by Members in accordance with the Declaration.

Section 5. Notices. Except as otherwise set forth herein, all notices under these Bylaws or the Declaration shall be in writing, and shall be addressed to a Member at the address of his or her Lot and to the Declarant ant to the Association at the addresses of their respective registered agents on file with the Secretary of State of the State of Alabama. Any Member may designate a different address, including an electronic mail address, for notice to such Member by giving written notice to the Association. Members shall keep the Association advised of their current address and telephone number(s) where they can be contacted. Notices addressed as above shall be mailed by United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage paid, or delivered in person, or issued electronically in accordance with the Alabama "Uniform Electronic Transactions Act." The time period in which a response to any such notice must be given or any action taken with respect thereto, shall commence to run on the date of personal delivery or date of receipt shown on the return receipt. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice sent.

Section 6. Amendment. These By-Laws may be amended only by the affirmative vote or written consent of a majority of the Members of the Board of Directors of the Association after the Conversion Date. Prior to the Conversion Date, these By-Laws may be unilaterally amended by the Declarant.

<u>Section 7</u>. <u>Tax-Exempt Status</u>. The affairs of the Association at all times shall be conducted in such a manner as assure the Association's status as an organization qualified for exemption from taxation pursuant to Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code remains unaffected.

Section 8. Construction. Whenever the context so requires, the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter gender, and singular shall include the plural, and vice versa. If any provision of these By-Laws shall be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining provisions of these By-Laws.

<u>Section 9</u>. <u>Headings</u>. The Article and Section headings herein contained are for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to impart substantive meaning to any provision of these By-Laws.

[Signature Page Below]

These By-Laws were adopted by the Board of Directors by resolution and vote of two (2) to zero (0) on the 20 day of November, 2022.

Directors approving:

Chris Knight

Whitney Fitzgerald

Exhibit C

STATE OF ALABAMA				
LEE COUNTY)	,			

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF BOROUGHS AT WYNDHAM SOUTH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

This is to certify that, for the purpose of forming a home owners association as a nonprofit corporation pursuant to the provisions of Sections 10A-3-1.01, et seq., Code of Alabama (1975) as amended (the "Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law") and Sections 35-20-1.01, et seq., Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the "Alabama Homeowners' Association Act"), the undersigned does hereby make, adopt, and file the following Certificate of Formation:

ARTICLE I

Name

The name of the corporation being formed (hereinafter referred to as the "Association") shall be:

Boroughs at Wyndham South Homeowners Association, Inc.

ARTICLE II

Type of Entity

The Association is being formed as a nonprofit corporation and as a homeowners association.

ARTICLE III

Duration

The duration and existence of the Association shall be perpetual.

ARTICLE IV

Purpose

- 4.01 The purposes for which the Association is formed are:
- (a) To be and constitute the Association to which reference is made in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for Wyndham Gates Subdivision (hereinafter the "Declaration"), to be recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Lee County, Alabama, to perform all obligations and duties of the Association, and to exercise all rights and powers of the Association, as specified in the Declaration, in the Bylaws of the Association ("Bylaws") and as provided bylaw;

- (b) To be and constitute a homeowners association within the meaning of Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; and
- (c) To provide an entity for the furtherance of the interests of the Owners in the Community as set forth in the Declaration.
- 4.02 In furtherance of the purposes set forth above, the Association shall have all of the powers conferred upon nonprofit corporations by common law and the statutes of the State of Alabama in effect from time to time, which, unless indicated otherwise in this Certificate of Formation, the Declaration or the Bylaws, may be exercised by the Board of Directors.
- 4.03 The Association shall have no capital stock, is not organized for pecuniary gain or profit, direct or indirect, to its Members. No part of the net earnings of the Association shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Association shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Certificate of Formation, the Association shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 528 of the Code.

ARTICLE V

Board of Directors

- 5.01 All corporate powers of the Association shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the Association shall be managed under the direction of, a Board of Directors. All of the powers and duties conferred or imposed on a board of directors by the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law shall be exercised or performed by the Board of Directors. The number of directors, the qualifications for directors, the terms each shall serve, the means of their election, and the grounds and procedures for the removal of each shall be provided in the Bylaws of the Association.
- 5.02 The initial Board of Directors shall consist of three directors to serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified. The names and addresses of the initial Board of Directors are as follows:

Name	Address
Chris Knight	160 Whitney Street, Fayetteville, GA 30214
Whitney Fitzgerald	160 Whitney Street, Favetteville, GA 30214

ARTICLE VI

Members

The Association shall have Members. Each record Owner of a Lot, as defined in and subject to the Declaration, is a Member and shall be entitled to vote as set forth herein, in the Declaration and in the Bylaws. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of a Lot.

ARTICLE VII

Bylaws

The Board of Directors shall adopt Bylaws governing the conduct of the business and affairs of the Association. Thereafter, the power to alter, amend, or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation shall be vested in the Board of Directors and Declarant (as defined in the Declaration) or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII

Initial Registered Office and Agent

The initial registered office of the Association shall be 641 South Lawrence Street, Montgomery Alabama 36104. The initial registered agent of the Association shall be Corporation Service Company Inc. a Delaware corporation, who shall be located at the initial registered office of the Association.

ARTICLE IX

Dissolution

Upon dissolution of the Association, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Association, distribute the assets of the Association as specified in a plan of distribution adopted in accordance with the Declaration and Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law, or the corresponding provision of any subsequent Alabama nonprofit corporation statute.

ARTICLE X

Indemnification

The Association shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law any person who has been made, or is threatened to be made, a party to an action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative, or otherwise (including an action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of the Association), by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director or officer of the Association. In addition, the Association shall pay for or reimburse any expenses incurred by such persons who are parties to such proceedings, in advance of the final disposition of such proceedings, to the full extent permitted by the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law.

ARTICLE XI

Liability of Directors

Pursuant to Section 10A-20-16.01 *et seq.* and Section 6-5-336 of the *Code of Alabama* (1975), as amended, all non-compensated directors, officers and other volunteers of the Association shall be immune from suit and shall not be subject to civil liability arising from the conduct of the affairs of the Association except when the act or omission of such person that gives rise to the cause of actions amounts to willful or wanton misconduct or fraud or gross negligence. To the fullest extent that the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Law, as it exists on the date hereof or as it may hereafter be amended, permits the limitation or elimination of the liability of directors, no director of the Association shall be personally liable to the Association or its members for monetary damages for breach of duty of care or other duty as a director. No amendment to or repeal of this Article XI shall apply to or have any effect on the liability of alleged liability of any director of the Association for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment or repeal. Any repeal or modification of this Article XI shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a director of the Association with reference to any event or events preceding or state of facts existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE XII

Incorporator

The name of the Incorporator of the Association is McMichael and Gray, PC, a Georgia professional corporation, 400 Franklin St. SE, Huntsville, AL 35801.

ARTICLE XIII

Amendment

This Certificate of Formation may not be amended, nor may the Association adopt a plan of merger, consolidation, or dissolution, without the affirmative votes of two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors in office and the unanimous consent of the Declarant and Approved Builder (as defined in the Declaration). Further, the Association may not sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its property without the affirmative votes of two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors in office and the unanimous consent of the Declarant and Approved Builder.

ARTICLE XIV

Incorporation by Reference

All of the terms, provisions, definitions, covenants, and conditions set forth in the Declaration are hereby expressly incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein. In the event of any conflict or ambiguity between the terms, provisions, definitions, covenants and conditions set forth in this Certificate of Formation and the Declaration, then the provisions of the Declaration shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned incorporator has executed this Certificate of Formation on this 2 day of <u>December</u>, 2022.

Michael Cooke

This Instrument was prepared by:

Michael Cooke McMichael and Gray, PC 400 Franklin Street Huntsville, AL 35801